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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The James. Hamilton House is an eclectic style structure, built between
1857 and 1861. The house is two-and-a-half stories in height, five bays across
the front, and four bays deep. The main block is covered by a simple gable roof
with overhanging eaves and is flanked by two pairs of interior chimneys. A one-
story cast iron porch extends along the front facade of the structure, as well
as along its two sides. The interior plan of the building is four-over-four, with
a central stair hall.

Rather than its basic house forms, however, the extraordinary features of
the Hamilton House are its eclectic features which are a combination of Federal
and Greek Revival stylings. The most prominent features of the house are its
cast iron porch columns, railings, and decorative grillwork. Their style is a com-
bination of Gothic, Classical, and Byzantine motifs. The Gothic columns have
~octagonal bases, clustered colonettas, and foliated capitals. The porch railing
is a popular Victorian geometric pattern with foliated cusps, connected by foliated
bosses. The decorative grillwork is a more freely flowing foliated classical
pattern, framed within variations on saracenic arches. The underside of the porch
cornice is decorated with a shallow, classical grillwork. It extends along the
entire length of the porch. Each column location is accented by a stylized acanthus
leaf located above the cornice line.

The other prominent features of the house are the overhanging eaves and
the triangular pedimented gable ends supported by Italianate-style brackets with
pendant drops. The brackets frame the underside of the eaves and are a strong
three~dimensional architectural element, which, in combination with the cast iron
porch, alter the planar aspects of the simple block house from beneath. The four
large chimneys with their raked stacks are a prominent feature of the structure's
skyline and stand in contrast to the low profile of the roof line.

More subtle architectural features include the use of stone lintels over
the windows and main entrance, a Greek Revival main entrance with a framing
pilaster, rectangular side lights, trabeated overlights, a %alladian window
opening on the second floor above the main entrance, a balancing effect of the
louvered shutters to the exterior wall proportions, and large floor-to-ceiling
windows on the main floor.

The house is constructed of load~bearing masonry walls, stuccoed on the
exterior and plastered on the interior. The structural members timber, and they
span between the exterior walls and the load-bearing central hall walls. The
roof is supported by timber trusses located above the half-story level. These
are covered by metal panels.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNI’FICANCE

The Dr. James S. Hamilton House (Alpha Delta Pi  Sorority House) is signifi-
cant both architectually and historically because it exemplifies the esthetic as
well as the financial achievements of pre-war Athens. Created by a local architect-
contractor-builder in the heyday, yet twilight, of the antebellum South, it evidences
both the:.culmination of the skills ‘of "its builder, as Well as the accumulated wealth
of 'its: owner.: - - ‘ . -

Like many bu91nessmen in the Athens-clarke C0unty area during the mid-nineteenth
century, Doctor James Sherwood Hamilton (1817-1888) found the potential for fame
and fortune very attractive. Residents of this small Georgia community enjoyed the
best of two worlds: the intellectual stimulation of the university and the promise
of wealth through industrial growth.

Hamilton, a native of Columbia County, Georgia, had graduated from the
university in Athens in 1836, and obtained a medical degree in 1839, and after his
marriage to Rebecca Crawford of Columbia County in 1843, was drawn back to this
spot of his youth. He was later a director of numerous railroads, a trustee of the
university, and the president of the Princeton Manufacturing Company. Dr. Hamilton's
sister Eugenia married Albin P. Dearlng and the1r home stands today as the Kappa
Alpha Theta House. N S - e e ST

Hamilton was particularly attracted by .the textile industry in Athens. In
1845, almost fifteen years before he built his permanent residence on South Milledge
Avenue, he purchased the Princeton Factory, a cotton textile mill located on the
“pconee River. This mill was the third of its kind to be established in the Athens
area, and Hamilton found the textile manufacturing business very lucrative. He
continued to own and operate the mill until his death.

It was apparently from the textile manufacturing business that Hamilton
accunulated enough wealth to construct his elaborate home which bespeaks his stature
and importance in the community. In 1857, Hamilton purchased two lots-nos. 50 and
55- on South Milledge Avenue for $800.00 The University of Georgia was the Grantor
of this property, having acquired it as a part .of the 640 acres of land donated
to the university by Governor John Milledge when the state institution of highex
education was founded. Milledge Avenue was settled between. 1857 and 1861, during
which time Hamilton built this house. Ross Crane, a New Jersey native the same
contractor/architect who built the First Presbyterian Church of Athens, as well
as his own residence at 247 Pulaski Street (now the S.A.E. Fraternity House),
was the man Hamilton hired to build his house.
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The central entrance hall is wide. It serves the structure as a space for
social gatherings as well as for general circulation purposes. The hall cornice
is a simple moulded design, and the ceiling is decorated with a plaster chandelier
boss. The stair is located to the left rear of the hall door where it turns and
rises again toward the front of the house. The tapered octagonal newel post, with
a turned flared cap and a mahogany railing and banister, are still in place. They
extend to the third floor in an open stairwell.

The primary rooms to the left of the central stair are double parlors or
drawing rooms, separated by sliding panel doors. These rooms are identical in
size, decorations, and arrangement. Each has a fireplace centered between the two
exterior windows. Dual windows are also opposite the connecting doorway. These
rooms have an elaborate high relief plaster cornice in a Classical floral pattern,
framed within a moulded border on both the wall and the ceiling. A heavily plastered
and foliated chandelier boss decorates the center ceiling of each of these drawing
rooms.

The primary rooms located to the right of the entrance hall on the first
floor have been modified. They are reported to have been a drawing room on the
front and a dining room on the rear.

The second floor has also been altered. Bathroom and closet space have
been added. The original interior arrangement, however, remains strongly regulated
by the load bearing interior walls. The most drastic alteration of the interior
space on the second floor is the addition of a bathroom at the front of the central
hall. It occupies half of the original hall space. The interior details of the
second floor bedrooms have been removed, and the fireplace has been sealed and
plastered. The third floor remains unaltered.

The later use of the house as a sorority necessitated the construction of
dormitory space in the rear. This addition extends straight back from the rear
of the structure. It is not easily visible from the front of the building. A
dining room addition is in keeping with the style, scale, and color composition
of the house, so any adverse visual effect is minimized.

The house is set far back from the street on a lot with many trees. Many
of these trees are very old hardwoods and magnolias which add to ‘the structure's
distinctiveness and serve to buff the noise created from automobilerand pedestrian
traffic on South Milledge Avenue. The house, in effect, has: very riuch retained its
original landscape setting. The gardens and landscaping of the home were mentioned
as one of Georgia's most significant gardens in Loraine M. Cooney's Garden History

of Georgia .
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Crane started work on the structure in 1857, but it was not until 1861, when
the ornamental ironwork trim on the exterior of the house was added, that the house
was completed. The ironwork was manufactured in the Wood-Perot Foundry in Philadelphia
in 1860 and then shipped to Athens via Savannah just prior to the outbreak of the
American Civil War and the Federal blockade of southern ports. Hamilton selected
the style-no. 38- from a catalog, placed his order in November 1860, and received
shipment the following January. Its price was $2,100.00.

The Hamiltons had nine children, several of whom were born after this house
was built, All of the children grew up at this home, making it an active domestic
center as the Civil War approached and the life they had grown accustomed to was
to change so drastically.

Dr. Hamilton and his family weathered the Civil War here and he died here

in 1888. After Mrs. Hamilton's death in 1896, a court suit ensued among the heirs
and creditors. Dr. Hamilton had willed the house and factory to his wife and children
jointly and the estate had lost money over the years due to mismanagement. His son-
in-law, S. Guyton McLendon (husband of Emily Hamilton and later Georgia's Secretary
of State) effectively broke the will in a law suit. As a result of this suit, the

- house was sold at a Sheriff's auction on the courthouse steps, the first Tuesday in
October, 1900. The house was purchased by the five daaghters for $10,836.00. These
daughters lived here for several years until they decided that it was too large
a home to maintain.

At the time of the sale, the house was described as being located on approxi-
mately elght acres and having "a brick dwelling containing 14 large rooms, besides
closets, pantrys, etc. Covered in tin in good order. Also a large kitchen, also a
smoke house, also a two room servants house, also a corm crib, also carriage house
and stables and all in good repair and constituting the most elegant and desirable
home in the city of Athens".

This description is in marked contrast to the condition recalled by the new
owners. About 1906-7 Edward Reginald Hodgson, III (later Junior) (1871-1967) and
his wife Mary Arthur McCullough (1881-1967)%who married in 1905sbought the house,
then still the only one on the block. Mr. Hodgson found the house in bad repair with
pigeons flying inside. He spent a year repairing the premises. As part of this effort,
he tore down the outbuildings, put in granite frontstairs and electricity and running
water. ‘ '
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Mr. Hodgson was president of the Empire State Chemical Company, a fertilizer
firm, and he and his wife had three sons born here. +This was their home for
nearly thirty-five years, and while there, was the scene of at least one wedding,
as well as their daughter's wedding reception in 1927.

The Hodgson family had come to Athens in 1839 having migrated to the United
States from England in 1836. They had long been involved with the stagecoach
business in Athens, and also the establishment of Georgia Institute of Technology
in Atlanta.

Having continued to live in this house, the Hodgsons sold it on July 1, 1939
for $27,500 to the Beta Nu Trustees, Incorporated, representing the Alpha Delta Pi
Sorority. The sorority continues to own and maintain the house as a dormitory and
chapter house, using it for meetings and social events.

From an architectural point of view, the house is an excellent example of
eclectic residential architecture popular in the state of Georgia during the mid-
nineteenth century. Only a limited number of homes remain that retain the cast-
iron porches as does this structure. The Hamilton house ranks high among these
due to the quality of design of the ironwork in relation to the overall plan and
styling. Locally, as an example of the work of Ross Crane (the most prominent local
antebellum architect) it is significant. Historically, the role of the owners of
the house in the development of Athens is significant in that the house reflects the
type of place chosen and built by an antebellum industrialist at the peak of his
career, Despite his wealth Hamilton chose a local man to build his home, and by
so doing helped to influence the architectual development of the town. The house
is also significant as an example of the adaptive use of older structures in its
approximately 40 years as a sorority chapter house.
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